
Earth Negotiations Bulletin
A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Online at: bit.ly/plasticsINC5Vol. 36 No. 33

INC-5 #6

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin (ENB) © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Tallash Kantai; Christina Fernandez; Katarina Hovden; 
and Jose F. Pinto-Bazurco, Ph.D. The Photographer is Kiara Worth, Ph.D. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>. The ENB is published 
by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD). The Sustaining Donor of the Bulletin is the European Union (EU). General Support for 
the Bulletin during 2024 is provided by the German Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nature Conservation, Nuclear Safety and Consumer Protection 
(BMUV), the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies - IGES), the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs 
and Trade, the Government of Switzerland (Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN)), and SWAN International. Specific funding for coverage of this 
meeting is provided by the Government of the Republic of Korea; the Austrian Federal Ministry for Climate Action, Environment, Energy, Mobility, Innovation 
and Technology; and the Secretariat of the INC on Plastic Pollution. The contents of this report are the sole responsibility of the authors and can under no 
circumstances be regarded as reflecting the position of the donors or IISD. Generative AI was not used in the production of this report. Excerpts from ENB may 
be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting, contact the 
ENB Lead, Jessica Templeton, Ph.D. <jtempleton@iisd.org>. The ENB team at INC-5 can be contacted by e-mail at <tallash@iisd.net>.

Sunday, 1 December 2024

Plastic Pollution INC-5 Highlights: 
Saturday, 30 November 2024

Delegates attending the fifth session of the Intergovernmental 
Negotiating Committee (INC-5) to develop an international 
legally binding instrument (ILBI) on plastic pollution, including 
in the marine environment, met for informal consultations 
throughout the day. They based their deliberations on the Non-
Paper containing draft text of the Chair of the INC.

Informal Consultations
Delegations convened, in parallel sessions and behind closed 

doors, to address “topics with high convergence,” where it is said 
that they presented their “red lines.” These topics were identified 
as: product design (draft article 5); releases and leakages (draft 
article 7); plastic waste management (draft article 8); [existing]
[legacy] plastic pollution (draft article 9); just transition (draft 
article 10); capacity building, “technology” assistance and 
technology transfer, including international cooperation (draft 
article 12); implementation and compliance (draft article 13); 
national action plans (draft article 14); reporting (draft article 15); 
and health (draft article 19). After closed-door negotiations, some 
articles – such as just transition (draft article 10) - were sent to an 
informal drafting group, to prepare clean text.

In the Corridors
Will INC-5 deliver a treaty? With only a day left for delegates 

to negotiate, the answer to this question generated mixed 
responses. Amidst the “aura of confusion” at the venue, some 
country delegates felt that the light at the end of the tunnel was 
“getting brighter.” “There are some articles that we can already 
agree on,” referring to issues such as information exchange; public 
information, awareness, education and research; final provisions; 
and the establishment of the conference of the parties (COP), 
subsidiary bodies, and the secretariat. Others, however, were more 
cautious, sharing that the clean articles need to be attached to 
strong language on production, design, waste management, and 
finance. “We are not there yet.”

For some “stakeholders,” though, being excluded from the talks 
at this crucial stage sent a “dark signal.” At a press conference 
of the International Indigenous Peoples’ Forum on Plastics on 
Saturday, Indigenous representatives stressed, “We have been 
silenced and strategically undervalued” in these negotiations. 
“How can you talk about a just transition, when we are not 

given a space at the table?”  Another delegate shared, “we are 
rights holders in this process,” and “this treaty must guarantee 
not only our participation in the negotiations, but also in the 
implementation of measures to tackle the onslaught of plastic 
pollution, which disproportionately affects our communities, 
relatives, and Mother Earth.” 

Will it be a plastics treaty, or a plastic waste treaty? “It is 
worrying that at this stage in negotiations, we are still unsure,” 
opined one participant. The text circulated on Friday has elements 
that, if agreed, “could give us a plastics treaty, with upstream 
measures related to production and design.” On the other hand, 
“if we cannot agree on these, we will go home with a plastic 
waste treaty,” she said, noting that this would be “a real waste.” 
Another delegate was overheard lamenting, “If after all this, we 
end up with a plastic waste treaty, which countries can implement 
domestically if they want, does it even make sense to call this an 
international treaty? Will it have been worth our efforts?”

One seasoned delegate wondered out loud whether there was 
still time to change the working modalities of the negotiations. 
“By now, we have come to the end of the line on contact-
group-like negotiations, with every state commenting on every 
line,” drawing attention to the fact that the informal closed-
door negotiations seem like “contact groups, just without the 
transparency.” He described several formats that could “push 
negotiations over the finish line,” including the round-table Vienna 
setting, which would bring the Chair and key coalitions together in 
face-to-face discussions. He wondered whether, “we may have run 
out of time” to switch gears in this way. 

With the informals going on upstairs, delegation after 
delegation held bilaterals with the INC Chair downstairs, perhaps 
in a bid to break the deadlocks on core issues. However, at the 
end of the evening, it was still unclear whether “we’ll be shedding 
happy tears on Sunday, or weeping.” In hushed conversations 
throughout the day, some were heard discussing “plan B options,” 
in the event that INC-5 does not deliver a treaty. “Who will fund 
a resumed meeting of the INC, if it comes to that?” queried one 
delegate. “Should we keep hope alive?” asked one delegate. The 
jury is still out.

The Earth Negotiations Bulletin summary and analysis of 
INC-5 will be available on Thursday, 5 December 2024 at enb.
iisd.org/plastic-pollution-marine-environment-negotiating-
committee-inc5 

https://wedocs.unep.org/bitstream/handle/20.500.11822/46705/Chair_Proposal.pdf
https://wedocs.unep.org/bitstream/handle/20.500.11822/46705/Chair_Proposal.pdf
https://enb.iisd.org/plastic-pollution-marine-environment-negotiating-committee-inc5
https://enb.iisd.org/plastic-pollution-marine-environment-negotiating-committee-inc5
https://enb.iisd.org/plastic-pollution-marine-environment-negotiating-committee-inc5
https://enb.iisd.org/plastic-pollution-marine-environment-negotiating-committee-inc5

